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Calgary is often stereotyped as a city with a population of
Anglo-Saxon descent, but such an image belies Calgary’s rich
ethnic heritage. Indians, Metis, French, English, Scottish,
Irish and Chinese along with many other groups contributed to
the growth and development of the city long before the turn of
the century. An excellent example of Calgary’s cosmopolitan
history is the Mission district. This neighbourhood was
founded by French Canadian priests who established a parish
here in the 1870s. On the site of the original Catholic mission,
the district was named Rouleauville after the brothers Charles
and Edward Rouleau who were among its most influential
pioneers. By walking through the streets of this community
and exploring its history we can understand the strength of
the influence exerted by Fremch Canadians on Calgary’s
cultural and economic development.

Panorama of Calgary from Mission Hill, c. 1892,




A Sketch of Rouleauville (Note Original Street Names)
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The present L’Eglise Sante-Famille.

“Le Carrefour,” a French bookstore, was built next to the
church on the north side of the Villa Jean Toupin. It was
established in 1976 by the French Canadian Society and stocks
a variety of French fiction, records and cards.

Both the church and the bookstore are significant as they attest
to the French origins of this neighbourhood. They now serve
as reminders of the Oblate missionaries who originally settled
here and as focal points for the surviving French-speaking
community.

Please walk north to 18th Avenue 5.W, and turn east. The next
site is midway down the block on the north side.
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2. FORMER RED CROSS CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL
522 - 18th Avenue S.W. 1914

Hospital ward during the 1920s.

Originally built as a residence in 1914, this building is more
interesting when considered in terms of its later use. In 1922
the Alberta division of the Canadian Red Cross rented this
building and converted it into a children’s hospital. For the
next seven years it served as a hospital for children whose
parents could not afford pediatric care.




Red Cross Children’s Hospital, 1922.

The Junior Red Cross Hospital had a capacity of 35 beds. It
was closed in 1929 when a new 50 bed hospital was opened on
20th Avenue, T‘hhﬂdﬂrmﬂhﬂdren'sﬂmpﬂﬂmﬂuﬂmt
of its kind in Canada.

Please walk east, cross over 4th Street 5.W. and continue east
two blocks along 18th Avenue S.W.







He set off to Ottawa in 18383 and, after much persistent lobby-

ing, returned with guaranteed possession of two sections of
land adjacent to the Elbow River.

In 1884 Notre Dame de la Paix was relocated to asite on the new
property. Owing to a rapid increase in the parish population,
the structure soon proved too small. In 1889 a grand church
was built on the site. The Catholic parish wasrapidly becoming
anglicized and in 1889 its name was changed from Notre Dame
de la Paix to St. Mary's. In 1913 the church was raised to the
distinction of “Cathedral® to reflect the establishment of the
Diocese of Calgary which was formed the year before.
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Present St. Mary's Cathedral, c. late 1950s










St. Mary's Cathedral and Parish Hall.

But in 1911 all of this changed...
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Calgary’s real estate industry was booming and the Oblate
Fathers soon discovered that their Parish Hall was standing on
a very valuable piece of property. The Canadian Northern
Railway was expanding in an ambitious bid to compete with the
Canadian Pacific Railway and the Mission land provided a
desirable site for the proposed Calgary terminal. Canadian
Northern purchased the Parish Hall from the Fathers with an
eye to purchasing more land later. The Hall was retained as a
temporary station until a new one could be built.

The first train arrived in 1913 and the last one left in 1971. The
“temporary” station became the permanent one when the local
economy declined following World War I. High costs and
moderate revenues contributed to the railway’s problems and
eventually both the railway and its Calgary station were taken
over by the Canadian National Railway.

When it became apparent that a major terminal would not be
built on the Parish Hall site, the Oblate Fathers made a series
of unsuccessful attempts to recover the building. After 1971,
when the railway ceased using the building as a terminal, the
hall was vacant for many years. Finally, it was acquired by the
City of Calgary in 1979. Major renovations, completed in 1987,
created dance studios and office space.




One block south of the Cathedral is the next building,
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5. SACRED HEART CONVENT 1893
219 - 19th Avenue S.W.

The Oblate missionaries were pleased when teachers arrived in
July, 1885 to open a Catholic school in Rouleauville. As
members of a religious order devoted to teaching, the Sisters of
the Faithful Companions of Jesus were forced to leave St
Laurent during the North West Rebellion.

Sacred Heart Convent, 1893.
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6. ORIGINAL ST. MARY’'S SCHOOL 1909
1912 - 2nd Street S.W.

As the convent was no longer big enough, boys’ classes were
moved to the basement of the Parish Hall while girls® lessons
continued at the Convent. A new school, named St. Mary’s,
was completed in 1909 and boys and girls were taught grades
1 through 12.

St. Mary's School.










Flexford House

Now continue one block south to view the next site on the east
side of the street.
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8. HOLY CROSS HOSPITAL 1892
2210 - 2nd Street S.W.

The present Holy Cross Hospital complex stands on the site of
Calgary's first Catholic hospital, commissioned by Bishop
Grandin in 1891. In January of that year four Sisters of
Charity, of the Grey Nuns from Montreal, stepped off the train
at two o’clock on a winiry morning. They had come to the
Oblate Mission to care for the sick. The hospital they started
had room for six patients and a stove. By 1892 the Sisters
opened a new hospital which housed thirty-five patients and
boasted the modern conveniences of hot and cold running
water, baths and electricity. A nursing school was started at the:

hospital in 1907.
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Haoly Cross Hospital, ¢. 1900.
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The original building was enlarged in 1928 and again in 1950.
Parts of the original structure, including the chapel which
dated to 1928, were torn down to make room for more modern
facilities. In May, 1969 the Sisters of Charity announced they
could no longer support the hospital and its operations were
taken over by the Alberta government. No part of the original
hospital stands today.

Now walk west along 22nd Avenue S.W. to 4th Street S.W. The
next buildings are best viewed from the west side of the street.




9. COMMERCIAL BLOCKS
2118 - 4th Street S.W,
2204 - 4th Street S.W.

The community of Mission developed primarily as a suburb of
Calgary. Downtown was relatively far away so 4th Street 5.W.
emerged as the commercial centre for the district.

These two commercial blocks are typical of those constructed
in Calgary during the boom period from 1905 to 1914. Most
buildings of this type were made of brick and housed retail
shops on the ground level with apartments above.

2118 - 4th Street S.W.
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220 - 4th Street S. W,

Decorative brickwork

was used to give grace and
proportion to what would
otherwise be a brick box.

In recent years owners have renovated many of these struc-
tures creating useful commercial space while maintaining their
original charm. Many other buildings are now being recog-
nized for their redevelopment potential.

Please walk north one block. The final site on this tour sits on
the northwest corner of this intersection.
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Tivoli Theatre.
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